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ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. CENT 79-16-M
PETI TI ONER A/ O No. 41-00995- 05002
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A O No. 41-00995-05005

Docket No. CENT 79-357-M
A O No. 41-00995-05006

Van Horn White Marble M ne
DECI SI ON

Appear ances: Robert A Fitz, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor,
U S. Department of Labor, Dallas, Texas, for
Petitioner Ral ph WIliam Scoggins, Esq., El
Paso, Texas David M WIlianms, Esq., San Saba,
Texas, for Respondent

Bef or e: Judge Stewart

The above-captioned cases are civil penalty proceedi ngs brought
pursuant to section 110( FOOTNOTE 1) of the Federal Mne Safety
and Health Act of 1977, 30 U.S.C. [801 et seq. (hereinafter, the
Act). The hearing in these matters was held in El Paso, Texas,
on May 14, 15, 16, 1980, and August 27 and 28, 1980.
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At the outset of the hearing, Petitioner read a nunber of
adm ssi ons by Respondent into the record. Respondent admtted
the following: (1) that, in essence, it fell within the
jurisdiction of the Act, (2) that the citations listed in Exhibit
1, a copy of the proposed assessment nunbered 41-00995-05001, had
not been chal |l enged and that the proposed assessnment had,
t herefore, beconme a final order of the Comm ssion, (3) that
Respondent' s enpl oyees worked a total of 84,456 man-hours in
1978, (4) that its enployees worked a total of 8,008 man-hours in
1978 at the Van Horn Wiite Marble M ne.

The proposed assessnent, identified as Exhibit 1, showed
that the operator had a history of 19 prior violations, for which
it was assessed a total of $997.

The parties stipulated that the size of the Van Horn Wite
Marble M ne was a small operation with 8, 008 total man-hours
worked in 1978 and t hat Respondent was a snall- to medi umsized
operator.

After the presentation of evidence and oral argument by the
parties on each alleged violation and each of the criteria to be
considered in the assessnent of a penalty, a decision was
announced orally fromthe bench. The decision is reduced to
witing in substance as foll ows, pursuant to the Federal M ne
Safety and Health Revi ew Comri ssion's Rules of Procedure, 29
C.F.R [02700.65. Ceneral findings were made with regard to
Respondent's size, its history of violations and the effect of
civil penalties assessed herein on its ability to remain in
busi ness. Evidence regarding each citation was presented in the
chronol ogi cal order of the citations rather than by docket
nunbers and the decision on each citation was accordingly
announced in that order rather than by docket nunbers.

BENCH DEC!I SI ON

Pursuant to stipulation by the parties, it is found
that the Van Horn White Marble Mne is a small-sized
operation and that the Respondent is a small- to
medi um si zed operator. Al enployees of the operator
worked a total of 84,456 man-hours in 1978. The
enpl oyees of the operator at the Van Horn Wiite Marble
M ne worked a total of 8,008 man-hours in 1978.
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Exhibit P-1 indicates that the operator has been
assessed the anount of $997 total for 19 prior violations,
in 1978. Pursuant to Exhibit P-1, it is found that the
operator's history of previous violations is noderately good.

It is found that the civil penalties in this case wll
not affect the operator's ability to continue in business.

Citation No. 162002

Citation No 162002 was issued on Novenber 7, 1978, by
MSHA | nspector Sidney R Kirk. The condition or
practice listed on the citation was "Beer bottle, a
round stick of 12 inches in length, and an air gauge
and hose were in the floor of the operator's cab of
conpany nunber zero haul truck."

The citation alleged a violation of 30 CF.R 0O
57.9-12, which states as follows: "Mandatory. Cabs of
nmobi | e equi pnent shall be kept free of extraneous
materials."

The record establishes that a beer bottle, a round
stick of 12 inches in length and approximately 1-inch
di anmeter, and an air gauge and air hose were on part of
the seat structure of the conmpany No. O haul truck. It
has not been established that in this particular
i nstance that the beer bottle, the round stick, the air
gauge or the air hose were necessary in order to
operate the truck on the day in question. While these
items m ght have had sone possible use in maintenance
of the truck, it is not clearly indicated that it was
necessary that they be in the cab of the truck on the
day of the inspection. Since these materials were
extraneous, the record supports a finding that there
was a violation of 30 C F. R 057.9-12.

VWhile it is possible that a person mght be injured
as a result of these conditions, the possibility is quite
renote. | believe that an injury is inprobable under
these conditions, due to the fact that it would be
necessary for a series of events to occur in order for
an accident to take place. First, the material would
have to get fromthe seat through sonewhat restrictive
openings to the floor. Then they would have to sonmehow
beconme entangled with the controls of the truck. Even
after that, with the truck noving at a slow rate of
speed, perhaps only 5 or so mles per hour, in |ow
gear, an accident mght still be averted. For that
reason, | find that an injury, as a result of these
conditions, is inprobable.

The record establishes that the m ne was in operation
at the tine of the violation and that the extraneous
articles
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were in plain view and obvious. This supports a finding
that the operator should have known that the extraneous
articles were in the cab of the truck and he shoul d have
taken steps to renedy the condition. It has not been
established as to what length of tine these articles
were actually on the seat in the operator's cab. Therefore,
the appropriate finding is that the negligence of the
operator was slight.

As to the remaining issue of good faith, the record
supports a finding that the condition was abated |ess
than an hour after the citation was issued. This
denonstrates that once the citation was issued, the
operator denonstrated good faith in abating the
citation.

In consideration of the foregoing findings of fact
and the statutory criteria to be applied in assessing the
civil penalty, it is found that a civil penalty of $75
is appropriate for this violation.

An assessnment in the anmount of $75 is entered.
Citation No. 162003

Citation No. 162003 was issued on Novenber 7, 1978, by
I nspector Sidney Kirk. The condition or practice noted
on the citation was, "The haul truck nunber zero,
entered the mne portal in total darkness and the
headl anps had been torn off. No other illumnation was
provi ded. "

The record does not support a finding that the truck
did, in fact, enter the portal in total darkness.
However, it does establish that the truck entered the
m ne portal frombright sunlight outside to an area
where it was considerably darker.

30 CF.R [O57.9-2 provides: "Mandatory. Equi pnent
defects affecting safety shall be corrected before the
equi prent i s used."

Notwi t hst andi ng the fact that the record does
not support a finding that the haul truck entered the
portal in total darkness, the citation citing a
violation of 30 CF. R [57.9-2, did apprise the
operator and the operator's counsel as to the nature of
the alleged violation sufficiently to allow the
operator to present its defense. The evidence supports
a finding that when the truck is entering the porta
fromthe bright sunlight outside into the darker area
vision is nonentarily reduced, creating a safety hazard
for a short period of tine. The record, therefore,
does support a finding that there was a violation
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The record establishes that there was sufficient
[ight to maneuver vehicles and performl oadi ng functions

after passing through the portal. The evidence establishes
that the probability that the absence of headlights on the
No. O haul truck would cause an injury is slight. | have

made no finding as to the effect of the lack of headlights
if the truck was com ng out of the mne because the effect
as the truck cane fromthe sonmewhat darker area out into
a bright area has not been established by the record. It
was al so not established that any great hazard woul d

occur in the operation of the truck inside the mne

after the driver's vision had adapted itself to the darker
conditions. Also, as the truck cane in through the porta
fromthe outside, it would be sil houetted by the porta

and should be readily visible to the persons or vehicles

com ng out through the portal. Nevertheless, there was

a nonentary inmpairment in vision of the truck driver as
he cane through the portal. | accept the testinony of
the inspector as to this point. However, since that
condition was only monmentary, | find that the probability
was slight.

The record supports a finding that the headlights had
been mssing fromthe No O haul truck for a
consi derabl e period of tine prior to the issuance of
the citation. It also supports a finding that the
operator either knew or should have known that the
headl i ghts were m ssing. Since the operator should
have known and failed to take corrective action, this
anounts to negligence. However, it is evident that the
operator used good faith in reaching its decision not
to replace the headlights or furnish the vehicle with
headl ights. In view of his good faith in this respect,
the finding is that the operator's negligence was
slight.

In view of the adm ssion by MSHA that the operator
did exhibit good faith in abating the violation, the
finding is that the operator did display good faith.

In view of the findings of fact and in consideration
of the statutory criteria for assessnent of a civil
penalty, a civil penalty in the anmount of $100 is
assessed for this violation.

ion No. 162004

Citation No. 162004 was issued by Inspector Sidney R
Kirk on Novenber 7, 1978. The condition or practice
noted on the citation was: "The park brake on the
nunber zero ore haul truck was inoperative. Wile
parked on a grade, two enpl oyees renoved the boul ders
from behind the rear wheels while the driver held the
truck with engi ne power."
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The citation alleged a violation of 30 CF.R 0O
57.9-37, which provides as follows: "Mndatory. Mbile
equi prent shall not be left unattended unl ess brakes
are set. Mbbile equiprment with wheels or track, when
parked on a grade, shall be either blocked or turned
into a bank and the bucket or blade | owered to the ground
to prevent novenent."

It is clear here that the Secretary is alleging a
violation of the first sentence of this regul ation
whi ch states that nobile equi pment shall not be left
unattended unl ess the brakes are set. The record
supports a finding that the No.0 haul truck did not
have parki ng brakes and that no brakes were, in fact,
set at the time the inspection was nade and the
citation issued. Since the brakes were not set on the
No. O haul truck, a violation of 30 C F.R 057.9-27
did exist.

It has already been determ ned as one of the
consi derations of whether or not there was a violation
of 30 CF.R 0[057.9-37, that the vehicle was
unattended. This finding was entered since there was
no one at the vehicle and no one in attendance nearby
at the tine of the inspector's arrival. The evidence
clearly shows that the vehicle was unattended, that it
did not have parking brakes and that the brakes were
not set. The record shows that it is probable that
this condition could result in serious injury to
per sonnel

VWil e the evidence shows that a new truck had
been ordered prior to the tine of the inspection, the
evi dence does not indicate that truck No. O had been
renoved fromservice or that it had been tagged to
prohi bit further use until repairs were conpleted. The
record clearly shows that the operator, either knew or
shoul d have known, that the vehicle did not have
par ki ng brakes and that the brakes were not set while
the vehicle was unattended. Therefore, | find that the
operator was negligent.

In view of the statenment by MSHA that respondent
exerci sed good faith, a finding is entered that the
operator denonstrated good faith in attenpting to
achi eve rapid conpliance after notification of the
viol ation.

In view of the above findings of fact and
the consideration of the statutory criteria for
determ nati on of the anpbunt of the civil penalty to be
assessed, it is found that an appropriate civil penalty
for the violation of this citation is $200.

The operator is assessed the penalty of $200 for
the violation set forth in Ctation No. 162004.
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ion No. 162005

Ctation No. 162005 was i ssued on Novenber 7, 1978,
MSHA i nspector Sidney R Kirk. The condition or
practice noted on the citation was as follows: The No.
O ore haul truck driver's visibility to the rear was
bl ocked by a cab protector and only one mrror |ocated
on the driver's side, backing through the plant yard
wi t hout a person signaling, and was not equi pped with
an automatic reverse signal alarmto warn persons in
t he area.

The citation alleged a violation of 30 CF.R 0O
57.9-87 which provides as follows: "Mandatory. Heavy-
duty nobil e equi pnent shall be provided with audible
war ni ng devi ces, when the operator of such equi pment has

an obstructed view to the rear. The equi pment shall have

either an automatic reverse signal alarmwhich is
audi bl e above the surroundi ng noise level or a lever to
signal when it is safe to back up."

by

Due to the construction of the cab protector the view

of the operator to the rear was obstructed. The record
supports a finding that the equi prent did not have an
automatic reverse signal al armwhich was audi bl e above
t he surroundi ng noise level. The record al so
establishes that on the day the citation was issued and
at the tinme the citation was issued, there was no
observer to signal when it was safe to back up. Wile
there were other persons in the area, none of them were
inthe immediate vicinity of the No. 0 ore haul truck
They did not fulfill the function of an observer to
signal when it was safe to back up. The record clearly
establishes a violation of 30 CF. R [57.9-87. The
first sentence of 30 C.F. R [157.9-87 says, "Heavy-duty
nmobi | e equi pnent shall be provided with audi bl e warning
devices." The evidence established that the No. 0 ore
haul truck was, in fact, heavy-duty nobile equiprent,
that it was not provided with a horn or other audible
war ni ng devices that were in working condition at the
time. The evidence indicates that the horn did not, in
fact, operate.

The evi dence establishes that the truck was subject
to being operated in the vicinity of where other mners
were working or otherwi se present. At tinmes, the truck
was subject to being backed up for considerable
di stances. The record establishes that it was probable
that the conditions found by and cited by the inspector
could result in serious injury to personnel. The
record clearly establishes that the truck was backed
for a distance of approximately 125 feet on the 7th of
November, 1978, during the inspection. It has not been
est abl i shed, however, that it was backed up at any
other time, without an automatic reverse signal alarm
or a person to signal and warn persons in the area.
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It was established that the horn did not work and
that there was no ot her audible warni ng device. However,
it was not established how long this condition had exi sted.
The only witness for the Governnment has testified that
there was no representative of the operator there and that
these conditions could, therefore, have not been known by
the operator of the mne. On the basis of this testinony,
I find that the negligence of the operator has not been
establ i shed.

Pursuant to a statement by MSHA that respondent
exhi bited good faith, I find that the Respondent
denonstrated good faith in attenpting to achi eve rapid
conpliance after notification of the violation

For this violation of 30 CF. R [057.9-87, a civi
penalty in the anpunt of $125 is assessed.

ion No. 162006

Citation No. 162006 was issued on Novenber 7, 1978, by
I nspector Sidney R Kirk. The condition or practice
noted on this citation was, "Hi gh voltage |ines over
the truck haul road approximately 40 feet in front of
the haul truck dunp site were not conspicuously
mar ked. "

This citation alleged a violation of 30 CF. R [O
57.9-60 which states: "Mandatory. \Were overhead
clearance is restricted, warning devices shall be
installed and the restricted area shall be
conspi cuously marked."

The testinony of Inspector Kirk has shown that the
lines over the truck haul road that he noted in this
citation were not, in fact, high-voltage |ines under
the regulation in Title 30 of the Federal Regul ati ons.
More inportant, however, is the question as to whether
or not the overhead cl earance was restrictive. The
Secretary asserts that the overhead cl earance was
restrictive because it is possible that some piece of
equi prent could contact it, that is, the lines. The
record in this case, however, indicates that the
hi ghest piece of equiprment was in use on this haul road
that m ght contact the lines or any other construction
over the road was the Euclid haul truck. Wth the bed
in the dunp position, the evidence establishes that
there was a 2-1/2-foot to 3-foot clearance.

I, therefore, find that this was not a restricted
cl earance, within the neaning of 30 C F.R [57.9-60.

Citation No. 162006 is, accordingly, vacated. The
proceedi ng concerning Citation No. 162006 is di sm ssed.
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ion No. 162007

Citation No. 162007 was issued on Novenber 7, 1978, by
I nspector Sidney R Kirk. The condition or practice
noted on the citation is: "Handrails were not provided
at the truck dunp, north side, where personnel observed
the ore hopper contents. A drop-off of approximtely
20 feet (existed)."

The citation alleged the violation of 30 CF. R 0O
57.11-2 which provides: "Mndatory. Crossovers,
el evat ed wal kways, el evated ranps and stairways shal
be of substantial construction provided with handrails
and mai ntained in good condition. \Where necessary,
t oeboards shall be provided."

The evi dence shows that there was a snmall nound
approximately 3 feet in width on one side of a dunp
ranp. Fromthis nmound, there was a drop-off of
approximately 16 to 20 feet. This nound was in
addition to the bernms on the side of the dunp ground.

Al t hough the conpany had issued instructions to the
truck drivers that they would dunp and receive their
instructions fromthe truck cab, the evidence clearly
shows that the nmound was used as a wal kway. The
multiple tracks on it indicated that persons had wal ked
onit. There was testinmony to the effect that persons
had been observed there watching the feeder contents.
This mound is clearly elevated and it is clearly a
pl ace where persons wal ked at tinmes. |It, therefore,
falls within the purview of the regulations as being a
wal kway.

Al though this mound is built on cribbing, there is
no indication that this cribbing extends up above the ranp
in any way to act as a guard. The testinony is
undi sputed that there was no handrail present at this
mound, which is in the nature of a wal kway. The record
supports a finding that the Respondent was in violation
of 30 CF. R 0[O57.11-2.

As to the gravity, the evidence establishes that if
a person were to fall fromthe el evated nound or wal kway
that the fall would be at least in the area of a
16-foot or a 20-foot fall and that the person would
fall on a hard surface of sonme type. A fall of this
nature coul d be expected to result in severe injuries
to the person.

The testi nony has shown that this wal kway was on
occasi on used by persons, specifically sonme of the
truck drivers. However, the nunber of occasions and the
frequency of these occasions was not established by the
testinmony. Due to the
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limted exposure of personnel to the danger of falling,
| find that it is inprobable that a person would be injured
a fall fromthis el evated wal kway.

The evidence has established that there was no handrai
at the elevated nmound or wal kway. It has al so
established that this condition was obvious and open to
view, even fromthe office. This supports a finding of
negl i gence on the part of the operator. The evidence
has, however, failed to show that the operator knew
that this area was being used with any frequency by the
truck drivers or other persons. Due to the |lack of
showi ng as to frequency, the fact that the truck
drivers had actually been instructed to remain in their
cabi ns and not use the wal kway, | find that the
negligence, in this case, is slight.

The record reflects that the citation was issued on
Novenber 7, 1978, and that the termination or abatenent
date was set for Novenber 14. Although the violation
was not abated within this tinme frame, the inspector
did nodify the citation on Novenmber 15, 1978, to give
t he conpany until Novenber 20, 1978, to abate the
violation. The citation termnating the original
citation was not issued until January 4, 1979; however,
it has not been established that the operator did
actually take that rmuch time in abating the violation

VWhen the violation was not abated by Novenber 14,
the tine set, the inspector did see fit to nodify the
citation to allow additional time. There is no
i ndi cation that an order of w thdrawal was issued for
failure to abate in sufficient tine. Since the actua
time of abatement leading to the termination of the
citation has not been established, I will give the
operator credit for good faith in attenpting to achi eve
rapi d conpliance after the citation was issued.

In consideration of the findings of fact and the
statutory criteria to be applied in assessing a civil
penalty, a penalty of $125 is assessed for this
viol ation.

Citation No. 162008

Citation No. 162008 was issued on Novenber 7, 1978, by
i nspector Sidney R Kirk. The condition or practice
noted on the citation was, "Access to the cutoff valve
on the diesel storage tank on the south side of the
crusher was by clinbing the slant structure and using
pliers to turn off the fuel."

The citation alleged a violation of 30 CF.R 0O
57.11-1 which states: "Mandatory. Safe neans of access
shal | be provided and maintained to all working places.”
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"Working place" is defined in 30 CF. R 057.2 as
follows: "Working place neans anyplace in or about a nine
where work is being perforned.”

There was a great deal of conflict in evidence as to
whet her or not this was a working place and that it was
a place in or about the mne, where work was being
performed. However, there is no need to resolve this
conflicting testinony, at this stage of the deci sion.

The viol ati on was abated by M. John Aragon on January
4, 1979. The justification for his action on his
subsequent action form which term nated the violation

was as follows: "The diesel fuel storage tank on the
south side of the crusher was equi pped with a cutoff
valve." This was evidently done because the cutoff

val ve, at the tine of the inspection, was not equi pped
with a valve wheel to operate the valve. The square
handl e had been rounded off by pliers used to close and
to open the valve. The termi nation formissued by

I nspector Aragon did not nmention the installation of a
| adder or the installation of additional handrails
around the area of the valve.

VWil e the access to some of the working places m ght
have been hazardous and a viol ation, attention has been
directed in this case to the access to the cutoff valve
on the diesel storage tank. This has been the issue
that has been litigated here. M. Sinpson has
testified that the cutoff valve could be operated by
reaching fromthe platformto the valve and this was a
safe operation. He also testified that there were
steps built on the A-frane structure, holding the
di esel fuel tanks, which could be used as a | adder

Inspector Kirk, in his testinmony, stated that, to
the best of his know edge, that the condition was
termnated nerely by the installation of a cutoff
val ve. There was nothing to indicate that additiona
| adders or handrails had been provided.

| therefore find that the record does not establish
a violation of 30 CF.R 0O57.11-1, in that it has not
been shown that a safe neans of access was not provided
and naintained to the cutoff val ve on the diese
st orage tank.

Accordingly, Gtation No. 162008 is vacated and the
proceedi ng concerning Citation No. 162008 is di sm ssed.

Ctation No. 162009
At the conclusion of the presentation of evidence with

regard to Citation No. 162009, Respondent noved that the
proceedings with respect to this
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citation be dismssed. It had been alleged that a master control
swi t chbox was not equi pped with a ground in violation of section
57.12-25. Respondent argued that testinony had established that
the control box was equi pped with a ground.

Respondent's notion to disnmss was granted as fol |l ows:

M. Kirk has clearly testified that the master control
swi t chbox was grounded with a netal conduit and that a
metal conduit was an approved and acceptabl e nmet hod of
grounding this particular type of installation. What
M. Kirk has testified to was that the magnetic starter
was not grounded by a conduit between the naster sw tch
and the magnetic starter.

M. Kirk has testified that he did not check to see
whet her there was a continuous ground fromthe nmagnetic
starters through the conduit, through the notor casings
to ground, and he has stated that while this m ght have

conplied with the regulation, it still mght be unsafe
due to the different degree of grounding in the three
mot ors which might cause an electric potential. Since

Citation No. 162009 refers to the master control
swi t chbox and not the magnetic starter, the citation is
vacat ed.

Citation No. 162010

Ctation No. 162010 was i ssued on Novenber 8, 1978,
and it alleged a violation of 30 C F.R [57.18-10. The
condition or practice listed on the citation reads as
follows: "First aid training had not been nade
available to all the enployees. The selected
supervi sor had been trained in first aid four years ago
in school. The seven enpl oyees were working 30 mles
fromthe nearest town and only a pickup truck and a
stretcher was avail able, and no conmunications."”

30 CF.R [57.18-10 reads as follows: "Mandatory.
Sel ected supervisor shall be trained in first aid.
First aid training shall be nade avail able to al
i nterested enpl oyees. ™"

Not wi t hst andi ng what had been told to the inspector
by M. Arturo Conzal es, forenman, the sel ected supervisor
t he evidence shows that he had in fact been trained in
first-aid on Septenber 14, 1977.

As to the second requirenent of the regulation, the
evi dence shows that first-aid training had been nade
avai | abl e and had actually been given to sone of the
enpl oyees and it fails to show that the operator failed
to make such training available to all interested
enpl oyees.
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Citation No. 162010 is vacated and the proceeding in
regard to this citation is dismssed.

Citation No. 162011

Citation No. 162011, issued on Novenber 8, 1978, by
i nspector Sidney R Kirk, alleged a violation of 30
C.F.R 0[057.11-58. The condition or practice noted on
the citation stated: "Two enpl oyees were found worKking
underground wi thout any identification. The check-in
board tags showed four persons to be underground. When
i nvestigated, neither were underground since two of
them were no | onger enployed at this mne."

30 CF.R [57.11-58 states as follows: "Mandatory.
Each operator of an underground m ne shall establish a
check-in and check-out system which shall provide an
accurate record of persons in the mne. These records
shal |l be kept on the surface in a place chosen to
m ni m ze the danger of destruction by fire or other
hazards. Every person underground shall carry a
positive means of being identified."

It has hardly been disputed that there were persons
under ground wi thout a positive neans of being
identified. Inspector Kirk stated in the citation that
two enpl oyees were found worki ng underground wi t hout
any identification. H s testinony clearly shows that
two enpl oyees were found worki ng underground wi t hout
any identification even though at one tine he possibly
did use |l anguage to indicate that perhaps those two
persons did have positive identification. This was
fully explained i n subsequent testinony. The record
establishes that there were enpl oyees w thout positive
nmeans of identification.

The citation also stated that the check-in tag boards
showed four persons to be underground when they were
not underground and two of them were no | onger enpl oyed
at the mne

Al t hough a check-out system had been established by
whi ch the mners checked in and out of the mne, or
wer e supposed to check in and out of the mine, the
systemdid not, on the day the citation was issued,
provi de an accurate record of persons in the mne as
required by 30 C F. R [057.11-58.

The record establishes that there was a viol ation
of the sentence of the regulation which states: "Each
operator of an underground mne shall establish a
check-in and check-out system which shall provide an
accurate record of persons in the mne."
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The record al so establishes a violation of the |ast
sentence of 30 C.F.R [57.11-58 which states: "Every
person underground shall carry a positive nmeans of being
identified."

The operator was, therefore, in violation of 30 C F.R
[057.11-58 as alleged in Gtation No. 162011

| do not find that the violation was wllful as urged
by Petitioner. However, | do find that the operator was
negligent and failed to follow the mandates of 30
C.F.R 0[57.11-58. The operator had established a
system for checking persons in and out of the mne
However, on the day of the violation, the system was
not sufficient to provide an accurate record of persons
in the mne since it showed four persons underground
who were not actually underground. The operator also
shoul d have known that there were persons underground
wi t hout positive nmeans of being identified. Not only
had these persons failed to | eave their tags at the
check-out board in accordance with the check-out system
and the check-in system established, but they had not
been i ssued neans of identification to be used under
that system

As to gravity, the unrebutted testinony of |nspector
Kirk was that the violation posed no hazard to the
m ners working at the time. However, he further
testified that there could have been danger to persons
i nvol ved in rescue efforts in |ooking for bodies.
Clearly, these persons mght al so have been m ners.
Nevert hel ess, the operator's mne was a snall mne and
t he danger to miners would have been triggered only by
a disaster. | therefore find that the possibility of
injury due to the violation was renote.

In view of the concession by Petitioner that tenporary
nanet ags were inedi ately issued and that the four
nanet ags were renoved fromthe check-in board, | find
that the operator denonstrated good faith in abating
the condition after the citation was issued.

Havi ng considered the six statutory criteria, | find
that a proper assessnment for this violation is $95.

No. 161774

Respondent objected on jurisdictional grounds to the

sment of civil penalties for alleged violations in Ctation
161774 and two others; 161776 in Docket No. CENT 79-16-M and
ion No. 161775 in Docket No. CENT 79-38-M At the

usion of testinony and oral argunment on the issue, the

foll owi ng deci si on was render ed:
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The March 29, 1979, nmenorandum of understandi ng between
OSHA and MSHA is set forth in a docunent offered by Respondent
on page 344, section 516 of The Commerce C eari nghouse, Inc.

a docunent published in 1980, entitled "Enpl oynent Safety and
Heal th Cuide."

According to this docunment the Cccupational Safety and
Heal th Act of 1970 (OSHA) gives the Secretary of Labor
authority over all working conditions of enployees
engaged i n business affecting comerce except those
conditions with respect to which other Federal agencies
exercise statutory authority to prescribe or enforce
regul ati ons affecting occupational safety or health.

Thi s docunent al so states that the Federal M ne Safety
and Health Act of 1977, Pub. L. 91-173, as anended by
Pub. L. 95-164 (M ne Act), authorizes the Secretary of
Labor to pronul gate and enforce safety and health
st andards regardi ng worki ng conditions of enpl oyees
engaged i n underground and surface mning extraction
(mning), related operations, and preparation and
mlling of the mnerals extracted.

The definition of a coal or other mne in the Act is
given in section 3(h)1 as foll ows:

Coal or other mne nmeans (a) an area of |land from
which mnerals are extracted in nonliquid form or
if inliquid form are extracted with workers
underground, (b) private ways and roads
appurtenant to such area, and (c) |ands,
excavations, underground passageways, shafts,
sl opes, tunnels, working structures, facilities,
equi prent, machi nes, tools, or other property
i ncl udi ng i mpoundnents, retention dans, and
tailing ponds, on the surface or underground, used
in, or to be used in, or resulting from the work
of extracting such mnerals fromtheir natura
deposits in nonliquid form or if inliquid form
wi th workers underground, or used in, or to be
used in, the mlling of such mnerals, or the work
of preparing coal or other mnerals, and includes
custom coal preparation facilities. |In making a
determ nati on of what constitutes mneral mlling
for purposes of this Act, the Secretary shall give
due consideration to the conveni ence of
adm nistration resulting fromthe delegation to
one Assistant Secretary of all authority with
respect to the health and safety of mners
enpl oyed at one physical establishment.

| believe that this definition can be read to nean
that a mne is an area of land fromwhich mnerals are
extract ed



~3139

in nonliquid formand facilities, used in, or to be used
in, or resulting from the work of extracting such mnerals
fromtheir natural deposits in liquid form

The MSHA/ OSHA agreenent of 1979 sets forth certain
general principles as to which an agency will have
jurisdiction. These are stated as follows: "This
agreement is entered into to set forth the genera
principle and specific procedures which will guide NMSHA
and OSHA. The agreenent will al so serve as guidance to
enpl oyers and enpl oyees in the affected industries in
determining the jurisdiction of the two statutes
i nvol ved.

The general principle is that, as to unsafe and
unheal t hf ul worki ng conditions on nmne sites and in
mlling operations, the Secretary will apply the
provi sions of the Mne Act and standards pronul gat ed
thereunder to elimnate those conditions.

However, where the provisions of the Mne Act do not
cover or do not otherw se apply to occupational safety
and health hazards on mne or mll sites (e.g.
hospitals or mne sites), or where there is statutory
coverage under the Mne Act but there exists no MSHA
standards applicable to particular working conditions
on mne sites, then the OSHA Act will be applied to
t hose wor ki ng conditions.

Al so, if an enployer has control of the working
conditions on a mne site or mlling operation, and
such enployer is neither a m ne operator nor an
i ndependent contractor subject to the Mne Act, the
OSHA Act may be applied to such an enpl oyer where the
application of the OSHA Act would in such a case
provide a nore effective renmedy than citing a mne
operator or an independent contractor subject to the
M ne Act who does not in such circunstances have direct
control over the working conditions.

This statenment of general principle seenms to apply
in nmost cases to mine sites and in mlling operations.
I do not have sufficient information to determne if
there was a mlling operation at the Van Horn | oadi ng
dock and will assume that the | oadi ng operation there
consi sted only of the use of hoppers, front-end
| oadi ng, and railroad cars, and perhaps ot her
associ at ed equi prent .

Thi s case does not seemto fall under one of the
exceptions in the OSHA MSHA nenorandum of under st andi ng
in the case where there is statutory coverage under the
M ne Act, but there exists no MSHA standards applicable
to particul ar
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wor ki ng condi tions on such sites. There appears to be NMSHA
standards applicable to particular working conditions at
the Van Horn | oadi ng dock

Anot her exception set forth in the menorandum of
understanding i s where an enpl oyer has control of the
wor ki ng conditions on the mne site or mlling
operation and such enployer is neither a m ne operator
nor an i ndependent contractor subject to the Mne Act.
Here, it appears that the enployer is a mne operator
who does have control of the working conditions at the
| oadi ng dock and is, therefore, not under the
exception. Also, there is no indication in this case
that the application of the OSHA Act woul d provide a
nore effective remedy than citing a m ne operator
subject to the Mne Act.

The menorandum of understandi ng does not seemto
specifically address the jurisdiction of the agencies
over a loading facility such as that of Texas
Agricul tural Aggregates--Architectural Aggregates at
Van Horn. However, as stated by counsel for Respondent,
there are subgroups of nonnetals |isted under the
authority of MSHA. These include sand and gravel,
and crushed and di nension stone industries, as well as
anot her list including sand, gravel, cement, and marbl e.

The menorandum of under st andi ng does contain the
statenment that OSHA regul atory authority comrences as
indicated in the follow ng types of operations: gypsum
board plant, brick clay pipe and refractory plants,
ceramc plant, fertilizer products, asphalt m xing
pl ant, concrete ready-m x or batch plants, custom stone
finishing, snmelting, electrow nning, and salt and
cenent distribution termnals not |ocated on mne
property, and refining. The nenorandum of under st andi ng
does, therefore, place certain distribution termnals
not | ocated on m ne propery under the jurisdiction of
OSHA.  However, these are only salt and cenent
distribution termnals. No other types of distribution
termnals are listed and there are no general words to
i ndicate that OSHA has jurisdiction in this case

Il will, therefore, apply the words of the Federa
M ne Safety Act of 1977 in determ ni ng whether or not NMSHA
has jurisdiction over the m ne operations or the
di stribution mne operations at the Van Horn | oadi ng
dock.

Since the definition of mne includes facilities used
in, or to be used in, or resulting from the work of
extracting such mnerals fromtheir natural deposits in
nonliquid form the loading facility at Van Horn is
clearly within the statutory definition of a mne.
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Since there is nothing in the nenmorandum of understandi ng

bet ween OSHA and MSHA to place this facility under the
jurisdiction of OSHA rather than MSHA, my ruling is that
MSHA does have jurisdiction over that facility.

The bench deci sion continued as foll ows:

Order of Wthdrawal No. 161774, citing a violation of
30 C.F.R [57.9-3, was issued on Novenber 9, 1978, by
i nspector Sidney Kirk. The condition or practice noted
on the order of w thdrawal stated: "The brakes on the
Hough- 30 payl oader used at the railroad | oading
facility in Van Horn, Texas was used normally on an
appropriate grade of ten to twelve percent. The brake
line was broken and when tried, the |oader would not
stop and/or hold on an approxi mately three percent
grade. "

30 CF.R [57.9-3 states: "Mndatory. Powered
nmobi | e equi pnment shall be provided with adequate brakes."

The testinony of M. Sinpson and Inspector Kirk has
established that sone tinme between Novenber 3 and the
date of the order of w thdrawal on Novenber 9, an eye
had broken froma tie rod, which, in turn, had broken a
brake line to one of the wheels. M. Sinpson's
testinmony has established that this line was to the
left rear wheel. His rationale was that the tie rod
was on the rear wheels used to steer the nmachine and
that is what broke the line. So it was clearly the left
rear line that was broken. Fromreports received by
these two witnesses, it was established that the eye
bolt had been repaired and that repair to the brakes
had been attenpted by placing a nail in the brake line
and reconnecting it to the master cylinder to create a
bl ockage rendering the brakes on the wheel served by
that line inoperative. The repairs were never tested
and the testinmony of M. Sinpson has established that
brake fluid was never placed in the brake cylinder

Al t hough the evidence establishes that the machine
was never used, it was there and available for use and
m ght have been used, relying on the brakes of only
t hree wheels by placing brake fluid in the cylinder and
by maki ng additional adjustnments and bl eedi ng.

The machi ne was never used by M. Tranago, the only
person other than M. Sinpson who normally used the
machi ne, after the tinme of the breakage of the brake
line. M. Tranago obviously knew that the machi ne was
not fitted with adequate brakes at the tine and he did
not attenpt to use the nmachine. However, there was
nothing to prevent the use of the machi ne. machi ne.
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There is no evidence that the machi ne was tagged or
| ocked out in any manner to prevent its use, therefore, |
find that there was a violation of 30 C F.R 057.9-3.

Since it was obvious that there was a nalfunction in
t he braki ng system due to the dangling brake |line and
since the condition was known to the parties at the Van
Horn loading facility, the operator either knew or
shoul d have known that the vehicle did not have
adequat e brakes and the operator should have taken
appropriate steps to renmedy the inadequate brakes. I,
therefore, find that the operator was negligent.

In view of agreenent by the parties that the gravity
was slight, | find that the gravity was low | find
that it was | ow because, as stated by counsel, the
machi ne was not actually used and it was al so not
likely that it would be used since the nmal function was
known by M. Tranago, the person who was ordinarily the
only operator of the vehicle other than M. Sinpson.

Al t hough the order of w thdrawal which was issued on
Novenber 9, 1978, was not term nated until Novenber 14,
1978, the evidence establishes that efforts had been
made to abate the violation pronptly and that the
repairs were acconplished at a reasonable tine after
the day of the order. Since reasonable efforts were
made to repair the braking system | find that the
operator denonstrated good faith in abating the
violation after receipt of the order of wthdrawal.

In consideration of the evidence adduced and
the statutory criteria which nust be considered in
determ ning the anount of a civil penalty, | find that
a penalty of $400 is appropriate.

A civil penalty of $400 is assessed for Order of
Wthdrawal No. 161774.

O der No. 162020

Order No. 162020 was issued by inspector Sidney Kirk on
November 8, 1978. It alleged a violation of 30 C.F. R
057. 3-22.

30 CF.R [57.3-22 reads in pertinent part:
"Loose ground shall be taken down or adequately supported
bef ore any other work is done."

The record establishes that drilling was done in
the face area and that |oose ground in the nature of
boul ders of marble were in the vicinity of the face
area and over the
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Settl

citat
asser

drill control. The record establishes that the | oose
fractured rock was there because of blasting operations
and was not, as suggested by Respondent, caused by trenors
or airplanes flying over. | therefore find that |oose
ground was not taken down or adequately supported before
any other work was done as required by the regul ation

VWil e the inspector acknow edged that there were no
persons working in the area at the tinme the citation
was witten, he has given evidence sufficient to
support a finding that persons had worked in the area
under neat h the unsupported boulders at a tinme while
they were | oose and unsupported. The fractures were
obvi ous and they should have been known by m ne
managenent. Since the operator either knew or should
have known that work was bei ng done under | oose,
unsupported ground, action should have been taken to
elimnate the hazard. | therefore find that the
operator was negligent.

The record establishes that it was probabl e that
a serious injury could occur as a result of this
violation. It establishes that there was | oose,
hangi ng rock above areas where persons had been worKking
and when scal ed down, at |east one of those rocks did

hit the drill. The drill nust have been brought into
the m ne by sone person and it is obvious that the
drill had been used in drilling the holes in the face.

In view of the fact that the Petitioner conceded
good faith by the Respondent, | find that the operator
denonstrated good faith in abating the violation once
the citation was issued.

In consideration of the statutory criteria which nust
be followed in determ ning the amount of a civil
penalty to be assessed, | find that an appropriate
penalty for this violation is $300. A penalty of $300
i s assessed.

enent s

Petitioner noved for approval of settlenment of a nunber of
ions herein. The proposed settlenents and supporting
tions are as foll ows:

Wth regard to Gitation No. 161773 in Docket No. CENT
79-38-M and Citation No. 161790 in Docket No. CENT
79-357-M | do not believe that there is a factual
di spute. Certain records were kept at the San Saba
O fice of Texas Architectural Aggregates, Inc.
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These records were not kept at either the Van Horn
facility or at the Van Horn Wiite Marble M ne, some 30
mles north of Van Horn, Texas. And if the Act and the
regul ations permt the records to be kept in San Saba,
Texas, there would be no violation. But if the Act or
the regul ations require the records to be kept at the
m ne, there would be a violation.

Basically, what is involved in these two citations is a
question of law. | do not think there is any factua
di spute to be determned. And if the Conm ssion could
rule as to whether or not the records are allowed to be
kept in San Saba, Texas, or allowed to be kept at the
location in Van Horn or at the mine itself, | think
that this citation could either be vacated, or if not
vacated, then settled.

The presiding Judge thereupon rendered a decision with
regards the existence of a violation as foll ows:

Citation No. 161773 was issued on Novenber 9, 1978, by
i nspector Sidney Kirk. The citation alleged a
violation of 30 CF. R [57.18-28(d). The condition or
practice noted on the citation was as foll ows:
"Records of self-rescue and nine energency training
were not available at the mne office nor the Van Horn
Texas loading facility office. The San Saba, Texas,
office confirmed that |ast training recorded was
Sept ember 1977."

30 CF.R [57.18-28(d) states: "Records of al
instruction shall be kept at the mne site or nearest
m ne office at | east two years fromthe date of
i nstruction. Upon conpletion of such instruction
copies of the records shall be submtted to the nearest
M ne Safety and Heal th Admi nistration Training Center."

Citation No. 161790 was issued by inspector Sidney
Kirk on March 7, 1979. The citation alleged a violation
of 30 CF.R [150.30(a). The condition or practice noted
on the citation was: "Records of quarterly enpl oynment
reports were not avail able at the Van Horn, Texas
office."”

30 C.F.R [50.30(a) states:

Each operator of a mne in which an individua
wor ked during any day of a cal endar quarter shal
conpl ete an MSHA form 7000-2 in accordance with
the instructions and criteria in Section 50.30-1
and subnmit the original to the MSHA Health and
Safety Analysis Center, Post Ofice Box 25367,
Denver Federal Center, Denver, Col orado 80225,
within 15 days after the end of each cal endar
quarter. These forms may be obtained from



~3145
MSHA Metal and Nonnetallic Mne Health and Safety
Subdi strict Ofices and from MSHA Coal M ne Health
and Safety Subdistrict Ofices. Each operator shal
retain an operator's copy at the mne office nearest
the mne for five years after the subm ssion date."

| take this subsection to nean quarterly enpl oynent
reports of mnes other than the coal mnes since the
coal production report is required by 30 CF. R [O
50.30(a) which states as follows: "Each operator of a
coal mne in which an individual worked during any day
of a cal endar quarter shall report coal production on
Form 7000-2." M ruling on the issue as to whether the
retention of records at San Saba, Texas, approximtely
400 mles fromVan Horn, conplies with the rules wll
be a narrow ruling and it will apply only to the
specific facts of this case.

The offices at the mine site and the office at the
Van Horn loading facility at the time the citations were
i ssued were not suitable for the retention of records.
However, nmy ruling is that this is not an adequate
excuse for failure to retain records at the place
regui red by the regul ati ons.

As counsel for Petitioner has pointed out, section
109(a) of the Act does require that at each coal or
other mine there shall be nmaintained an office with a
conspi cuous sign designating it as the office of such
m ne.

This ruling does not reach the issue, since it is
not necessary to resolve this case, as to whether the
records should be kept at the mne site, at the bus
body designated as an office at the mne site, or
whet her they m ght be kept at Van Horn, 30 mles away.
It is, however, nerely a ruling that the retention that
the records in San Saba, 400 mles away, does not neet
the requirenents of the Act and of the regul ations.

There seens to be some gui dance fromthe words of 30
C.F.R [57.18-28(d), where there is a requirenent that
records of instruction shall be kept at the mne site
or nearest mne office. This would seemto infer, even
wi t hout considering the requirenents of section 109 of
the Act, that it is expected that the nmne office would
be mai ntai ned near the mine site and not at a point 400
mles away or at sone distant corporate office.

My ruling, therefore, is that the retention of records
at San Saba, Texas, instead of at Van Horn or at the
mne site, 30 mles fromVan Horn, was in violation of
the regul ations as alleged in Citation Nos. 161773 and
161790.
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After the decision regarding the existence of a violation was
rendered the parties stipulated as follows: "There was no
gravity because no enpl oyees were exposed to injury by these
violations and that the m ne operator showed good faith by
i Mmediately term nating the violation on being notified that the
records should be kept in Van Horn."

Fol | owi ng these stipul ati ons the bench deci sion continued as
fol | ows:

The stipulation that there was no gravity and that the
operator exhibited good faith in abating the condition
after the citation was issued is accepted.

| rule that the operator did maintain the records at
the facility which was nost convenient to himat the
time to maintain those records and that he had not
become aware that it was necessary at that tinme to
mai ntain records near the mne. Al though ignorance of
the requirenents of the statute and regulations is no
excuse, | feel that the operator acted in good faith in
mai ntai ning the records at the site nost convenient to
him Therefore, | find that any negligence of the
operator was very slight.

In consideration of the six statutory criteria, a
nom nal penalty of $10 will be assessed in each case.

The assessnent for Citation No. 161773 in Docket No.
CENT 79-38-Mis $10.

The assessnent for Citation No. 161790 i n Docket No.
CENT 79-357-Mis $10.

Petitioner also nmoved for approval of the follow ng
settl enments:

Wth regard to Gitation No. 162012 in Docket No. CENT
79-16-M the proposed assessnment was $180. The agreed
assessnent is $60. In support of this settlenent, the
Petitioner would show that there was ordi nary
negl i gence and that the operator should have known of
the violation, that the occurrence of the event agai nst
whi ch the standard was directed was inprobable, but if
the event had occurred, it |ikely would have resulted
in a fatal accident, that only one enpl oyee was
exposed, and that the Respondent denonstrated good
faith in the term nation of the violation

Wth regard to Citation No. 162016 in Docket No.
CENT 79-16-M the proposed assessnment was $180 and the
agreed assessnent is $87.

In support of this settlenment, the Petitioner
woul d show t hat the Respondent shoul d have known of
the condition, that
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t he acci dent was probable, and that only a disabling

i njury woul d have happened if the accident had occurred,
that only one enpl oyee was exposed to the condition, and
that the Respondent denonstrated good faith in term nation
of the condition upon receipt of the citation

Wth regard to Gitation No. 161762 in Docket No. CENT
79-16-M the proposed assessnment was $160 and the
agreed assessnent is $60.

In support of this disposition, the Petitioner
woul d show that there was ordinary negligence in that
t he operator should have known of the condition, that
t he occurrence of an accident was inprobabl e but that
if an accident had occurred, it possibly could have been
a fatal accident, that only one enpl oyee was exposed to
the condition and the operator denpnstrated good faith
intermnating the condition

Wth regard to Gitation No. 161763 in Docket No. CENT
79-16-M the proposed assessnment was $114 and the
agreed assessnent is $42.

In support of this disposition, the Petitioner would
show t hat the operator should have known of the
condi tion but that the occurrence of an accident woul d
have been inprobable, that only |ost work days woul d
have resulted from a possi bl e accident, that only one
enpl oyee was exposed, and that the operator
denonstrated good faith in termnating the condition

Wth regard to Gitation No. 161769 in Docket No. CENT
79-38-M the proposed assessnment was $160 and the
agreed assessnent is $87.

In support of this disposition, the Petitioner would
show t hat the Respondent shoul d have known of the
condi tion but that the occurrence of an accident as a
result fromthis condition was inprobable, that a fata
acci dent possibly could have resulted, that only one
enpl oyee was exposed, and that the operator
denonstrated good faith in termnating the condition
upon recei pt of the citation

In Gtation No. 161770 in Docket No. CENT 79-38-M
t he proposed assessment was $98 and the agreed assessmnent
is $51.

In support of this disposition, the Petitioner
woul d show t hat the Respondent shoul d have known of
the condition, that an accident resulting fromthis
condition was inprobable, that only [ ost work days
woul d be the likely result of an accident, that only
one enpl oyee was exposed, and that the Respondent
denonstrated good faith in termnating the condition
upon recei pt of the citation
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Wth regard to Citation No. 161771 in Docket No.
CENT 79-38-M the proposed assessnment was $150 and the
agreed assessnent is $81.

In support of this disposition, the Petitioner would
show t hat the Respondent shoul d have known of the
condition, that an accident resulting fromthis
condition was inprobable, that if an acci dent had
resulted, it possibly could have resulted in disabling
injuries, that only one enpl oyee was exposed to the
condition, and that Respondent denonstrated good faith
intermnating the condition upon receipt of the
citation.

In Gtation No. 161772 in Docket No. CENT-79-38-M
t he proposed assessnment was $78 and the agreed assessmnent
is $51.

In support of this disposition, the Petitioner
woul d show t hat the Respondent shoul d have known of
the condition, that an accident resulting fromthis
condition was inprobable, that only [ ost work days
woul d have resulted froman accident, and that one
enpl oyee was exposed, and that the Respondent
denonstrated good faith in termnating the condition
upon recei pt of the citation

In Gtation No. 161777 in Docket No. CENT 79-16-M
t he proposed assessment was $98 and the agreed assessnent
is $36.

In support of this disposition, the Petitioner would
show t hat Respondent possibly should have known of the
violation, that the occurrence of an accident was
i nprobabl e, that |ost work days possibly could have
resulted fromthe accident, and that only one enpl oyee
was exposed, and that the Respondent denonstrated good
faith in term nating the condition upon receipt of the
citation.

A ruling was accordingly announced that the negoti ated
settlenents were approved in the follow ng amounts: Citation No.
162012, $60; Citation No. 162016, $87; Citation No. 161762, $60;
Citation No. 161763, $42; Ctation No. 161769, $87; Citation No.
161770, $51; Citation No. 161771, $81; Citation No. 161772, $51
Citation No. 161777, $36."

Petitioner also noved for approval of additional settlenents
as follows:

Wth respect to Citation No. 161775 in Docket No. CENT
79-38-M the proposed assessment was $130. The parties
have agreed that an assessnment of $42 woul d be
appropriate, subject to the Respondent's exception to
the ruling that the Van Horn distribution terminal is
covered by MSHA regul ati ons instead of by OSHA



regul ati ons.
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In support of this settlenment, the Petitioner would
show that there was sone negligence in that the operator
shoul d have known of the condition, that an acci dent because
of this violation would have been inprobable, that if such
an acci dent had occurred only | ost days woul d have been
attributed to the accident, that only one enpl oyee was
exposed to the condition, and that the Respondent denonstrated
good faith in the term nation of the condition

Wth regard to Gitation No. 162014 in Docket No. CENT
79-38-M the proposed assessnment was $72 and the agreed
assessnent is $39.

In support of this disposition, the Respondent woul d
show that there was only ordi nary negligence in that
t he operator should have known of the condition, that
it was inprobable that an accident woul d have resulted
fromthe condition, that if an accident had resulted,
it was unlikely that an enpl oyee woul d have received a
| ost day injury, that only one mner was exposed, and
t hat the Respondent denonstrated good faith in
term nating the condition.

Wth regard to Citation No. 162017 in Docket No.
CENT 79-38-M the proposed assessnment was $180 and the
agreed assessnent is $27.

In support of this disposition, the Petitioner would
show that there was very little negligence involved in
that there was only a possibility that the operator
coul d have known of the condition, that it was
i nprobabl e that the condition would have resulted in an
accident and if the condition had resulted in an
accident, the likely injury would have not invol ved
| ost work days to the miner, that only one mner was
exposed to this condition, and that the Respondent
denonstated good faith in termnating the condition
once the citation was issued.

The negoti ated settlenents were approved and
assessnments were entered as foll ows:

A civil penalty for Citation No. 161775 is assessed
in the amount of $42.

For Citation No. 162014, a civil penalty is assessed
in the amount of $39.

For Citation No. 162017, a civil penalty is assessed
in the amount of $27.

Petitioner proposed that the presiding Judge, after
rendering a determnation as to whether the condition was in
violation of the Act, approve the follow ng settlenent:



~3150

If the Comm ssion should find that the ranp is an
el evated roadway wi thin the nmeaning of the standard, the
parties agree that an assessed penalty of $87 woul d be
appropriate (for Gtation No. 161776). O course, this
$87 is subject to the Respondent's exception to the ruling
that the Van Horn distribution terminal is covered by MSHA
regul ati ons instead of by OSHA regul ati ons, (FOOTNOTE 2) and
al so, subject to Respondent's exception to any ruling that
the loading ranp is an el evated roadway wi thin the neani ng
of 30 CF.R [O57.9-22.

In support of the agreed disposition, the Petitioner
woul d show that there was ordinary negligence in that
t he Respondent shoul d have known that the ranp did not
have guardrails. The occurrence of an accident from
| ack of guardrails was inprobable but that if such an
acci dent shoul d occur, possible disabling injuries
could have occurred to the operator of any equi pnent on
the ranp, that only one enpl oyee was exposed, and that
t he Respondent denonstrated good faith in term nation
of the condition.

The bench deci sion was in substance as foll ows:

To place the issue in context, | will read the
citation, or the applicable parts thereof, on the
record. Citation No. 161776 was i ssued on Novenber 9,
1978, by inspector Sidney Kirk. The citation alleged a
violation of 30 C.F.R [057.9-22. The condition or
practice noted on the violation was: "The el evated
ranp to the railroad | oading facility was not provided
with berns or guardrails along the west side where the
hei ght was froma flat to approximtely six feet high."

30 CF.R [57.9-22 provides as follows: "Mndatory.
Bernms or guards shall be provided on the outer bank of
el evat ed r oadways. "

Inspector Kirk has testified that the length or ranp
was 60 to 70 feet and that it led froman alley to the
| oadi ng pl ace, where the height was approximtely 6
feet. M. Sinpson, on the other hand, has testified on
behal f of the Respondent that the ranp was
approximately 25 feet with a short extension and that
t he maxi mum hei ght was approxi mately 4 feet.

Since there is nothing to indicate the actual |ength
and the height, there is no possible way to reconcile
this testinmony in such a way as to determ ne the
accurate |l ength
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of the ranp nor the height of the ranp since Inspector Kirk
has stated that he did not nake neasurenents and there is no

i ndication that M. Sinpson nade any actual neasurenents. In
di sposing of the issue, it will be considered that the ranp is
somewhere between 25 feet and 70 feet in length and that the
hei ght is sonewhere between 4 to 6 feet.

Counsel have cited no cases directly in point and
know of no such cases. However, | amaware that a
Judge of the Federal Mne Safety and Health Revi ew
Conmi ssion has held in two instances that ranps,
| oadi ng pl aces, and places where trucks travel were
required to be berned or guarded.

The first of these cases is the Gol den R Coal Conpany,
i ssued by Judge George Koutras on Novenber 5, 1979.
The docket nunber is BARB 79-301-P. That case dealt
with an el evated roadway |l eading to a dunp site. In
that instance, dunmp trucks would pull up to a
turnaround and the trucks would be placed in reverse to
back up the short roadway to the dunp site.

The ot her case which involved berns and al so the issue
as to whether or not the operation was a m ne was Rock
Val l ey Cement Block and Tile. That was Docket No. DENV
79-587-PM which was issued in July of 1980. A resune
of that case is contained in the August 1, 1980, issue

of "M ne Productivity Report." The case dealt with a
di ke which was being constructed to prevent a nearby
river fromflooding a sand and gravel pit. In that

case, a netal/nonnetal operator was required to have
berms on the di ke being constructed even though the
roadway used on the top of the dike was only for the
pur pose of the construction of the dike. It was held,
in essence, that the short duration of the dike
construction did not prevent the top of the di ke used
by trucks from being a roadway.

Now, | do not have these cases or excerpts therefrom
before ne. However, the first of these cases, the
ol den R Coal Conpany case, did contain a dictionary
definition of a road and a roadway which was taken from
Webster's New Wrld Dictionary. A road was defined as
a "way, path, or course,"” and a roadway was defined as
"that part of a road used by cars, trucks,
etc.--traveled part of a road.”

It is noted in that decision that a ranp is defined
intwo ways in the Dictionary of Mnes, Mnerals, and
Rel ated Terns. It is first defined as, "An inclined
approach--Used | oosely when applied to a | oading ranp.™
The other definition is, "An incline connecting two
levels.” The facility
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its ¢

used by Respondent clearly was a ranp, but that does not
di spose of the issue because we nmust now detern ne whet her
a ranp can al so be a roadway.

The ranp was clearly the extension of a roadway used by
trucks to load rail cars. Even if, as testified by M.
Si npson, the length of this ranp was only 25 feet, the
record establishes that it was a road used by trucks
and that it was a traveled part of a road.

The regul ation requires that berns nust be built on
el evat ed roadways. Under the circunstances of this
case, even if the drop-off were only 4 feet as
testified by M. Sinpson, there could be a serious
hazard due to the elevation and it is clear that the
ranp was an el evated roadway.

VWile the cases that | have cited are not binding,
they do provide guidance and the reasoning therein is
per suasi ve to some degree, even though the
circunmstances were different. | believe that they are
correct.

A short duration of use (which m ght be because of the
short length of the roadway or because it was used only
for a short period of tine while |oading), does not
prevent the ranp in this case frombeing an el evat ed
roadway and subject to the requirenents of the
regulation. | therefore hold that the ranp was an
el evat ed roadway subject to the requirenments of the
regul ati on.

The parties have agreed that the $160 proposed penalty
shoul d be reduced to $87. In its nmotion that the
settl enent be approved, counsel for Petitioner has set
forth the statutory criteria applied and I amin
agreement with the negotiated settl enment reached.

For Citation No. 161776, a civil penalty in the anount
of $87 is assessed.

Petitioner also noved that Respondent’'s notion to w thdraw
ont est be approved as foll ows:

Wth regard to Citation Nos. 161764, 161766, and
161767, the Respondent noves to withdraw its contest.

Wth regard to the citations on which Respondent
is wthdrawing its contest, the Petitioner would show that
in each of these cases, the Respondent coul d have known
of the cited condition, that the condition against
which the cited condition was directed, the |ikelihood
of occurrence was probabl e,
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that the Respondent denonstrated good faith in attenpting
to termnate the condition once it had been called to
Respondent' s attention.

Wth regard to Citation No. 161764, the Petitioner
woul d show t hat | ost work days could have resulted had
an accident occurred and with regard to Citation Nos.
161766 and 161767, the Petitioner would show that if an
acci dent had occurred, a possible disabling injury
woul d have resulted fromit.

And al so, in each of those three cases, the Petitioner
woul d show t hat only one enpl oyee was exposed to the
hazar dous condi ti on.

For Citation No. 161764, the proposed assessnent is $84
and the agreed assessnment is $84.

For Citation No. 161766, the proposed assessnent was
$114 and the agreed assessnent is $114.

For Citation No. 161767, the proposed assessnent was
$114 and the agreed assessnent is $114.

These settlements were approved.
Wthdrawn Citations

Petitioner made an oral npotion for wthdrawal of the
follow ng citations:

Docket No. CENT 79-16-M Ctation Nos. 162019, 161761
and 161768

Docket No. CENT 79-147-M Ctation No. 161765

Docket No. CENT 79-17-M Ctation Nos. 161778
and 161779

Docket No. CENT 79-38-M Ctation No. 161780

In support of this nmotion to vacate, counsel for Petitioner
asserted the following: "A close examnation of the citations
and the evidence available to the Petitioner indicates that the
Petitioner will not be able to go forward and sustain a proof of
a violation in those instances."

The notion was granted and the follow ng citations were
vacated: Nos. 162019, 161761, 161765, 161768, 161778, 161779,
and 161780.

The followi ng notions for approval of wthdrawal of
citations were also submtted by Petitioner:



~3154
Wth regard to Citation No. 162013 in Docket No.
CENT 79-16-M and with regard to Ctation Nunber 162015
in Docket No. 79-16-M the Petitioner noves to wthdraw
the citations.

In support of this disposition, the Petitioner would
show that the notion to withdraw Citation Nos. 162013
and 162015 is made because the Petitioner has doubtfu
evi dence concerning rather involved electrica
violations and is not at all certain that the
Petitioner could prevail.

This notion was approved by the presiding Judge. The two
citations, Nos. 162013 and 162015, were vacat ed.

ORDER
IT 1S ORDERED that the above bench decision is AFFI RVED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED t hat Respondent pay the sum of $2,502
within 30 days of the date of this order.

Forrest E. Stewart
Admi ni strative Law Judge

~FOOTNOTE_ONE
1 Sections 110(i) and (k) of the Act provide:

"(1) The Commi ssion shall have authority to assess al
civil penalties provided in this Act. |In assessing civil
nmonet ary penalties, the Conm ssion shall consider the operator's
hi story of previous violations, the appropriateness of such
penalty to the size of the business of the operator charged,
whet her the operator was negligent, the effect on the operator's
ability to continue in business, the gravity of the violation
and the denmonstrated good faith of the person charged in
attenpting to achieve rapid conpliance after notification of a
violation. |In proposing civil penalties under this Act, the
Secretary may rely upon a sunmary review of the information
avail able to himand shall not be required to nmake findi ngs of
fact concerning the above factors.

"(k) No proposed penalty which has been contested
bef ore the Conmi ssion under section 105(a) shall be conprom sed,
mtigated, or settled except with the approval of the Conm ssion
No penalty assessment whi ch has becone a final order of the
Conmmi ssion shall be conprom sed, nmitigated, or settled except
wi th the approval of the court.”

~FOOTNOTE_TWOD
2 See discussion above, beginning at p. 14.



